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Suile 3bO0 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-a599 

Independent Auditors' Report 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Association and subsidiary 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Louisiana Municipal Association and subsidiary (LMA) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements arc the responsibility of the Louisiana Municipal Association's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 111 our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Louisiana Municipal Association as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. The consolidating information included in Schedules l through 4 is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the individuals companies. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole. 

June 11, 1999 

Ill/I 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl, ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
Assets 
December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Cash Investments (note 2) Accounts receivable Due from affiliates (note 3) Prepaid expenses Land, building and equipment (cost), net (note 4) Other assets (note 5) Total assets Liabilities and Net Assets Liabilities: Unearned dues and fees Accounts payable and accrued expenses Note payable (note 3) Claims processing payable (note 10) Total liabilities Net assets - unrestricted Total liabilities and net assets 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 

1998 1997 744,996 1,404,821 144,824 2,933,313 70,812 4,387,325 68.196 $ 9,754.287 

539,994 948,710 186,210 2,306,825 85,615 4,542,998 66,159 8,676,5 
180,663 234,933 1,932,711 250,000 2,132,902 2.598,307 7,621,385 9,754,287 8,676,5 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Consolidated Statements of Activities Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Changes in unrestricted net assets: Revenues and other support: Administrative fees and commissions (note 3) Membership dues Legal services (note 3) Rent Interest income (note 2) Other income 

5,092,697 275,821 280,962 65,495 85,250 290,046 

1997 
4,458,413 291,413 268,590 86,513 73,259 335,203 Total unrestricted revenues and other support 6,090,271 5,513,39 Expenses - general and administrative Increase in unrestricted net assets before participant funding Participant funding (note 3) Change in unrestricted net assets after participant funding Net assets at beginning of year Net assets at end of year 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements 

3,347,090 3,462,753 
2,743,181 2,050,638 1,200,000 1,381,200 
1,543,181 669,438 6,078,204 5,408,766 7,621,385 6,078,204 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Change in tmrestricted net assets Adjustments to reconcile the change in unrestricted net assets to net cash provided by operations: Depreciation and amortization Change in receivables, prepaids, due from affiliates and other assets Changes in accounts payable, accrued expenses and unearued dues Total adjustments Net cash provided by operating activities Cash flows from investing activities: Purchase of properly, plant and equipment Purchase of investments Maturity of certificates of deposits Net cash used in investing activities Cash flows from financing activities - payments on notes payable Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash, beginning of year Cash, end of year Cash paid during the year for interest 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

1998 1997 1,543,181 669,438 
187.454 208,644 (572,336) (135,976) 66.548 
1,224,847 
(31,781) (456,111) 

(I 8,286) 54,382 723.820 
(55,771) (948,710) 450.000 (487,892) (554,481) 

(531,953). 205,002 (604,723) (435,384) 539,994 975,378 744,996 118,142 157.979 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(1) Significant Accounting Policies 

December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(a) Principles and Consolidation The accompanying consolidated financial statements include Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA), its wholly-owned subsidiary Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) and its wholly-owned subsidiary Risk Management Insurance Agency (RM1A). All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. (b) Organization Background LMA is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is incorporated as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. RM1, a Louisiana corporation, serves as the third-party administrator for the Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) which was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of interlocal risk management for LMA's member municipalities. LMA and RMI are related by common management to LMRMA (Worker's Compensation Fund, Public Liability Fund and Accident and Health Fund), the Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund (LMRF), and the Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (LMA-UCF). RM1A was incorporated in 1992 to act as an agent for purchasing insurance on behalf of member municipalities and others. (c) Financial Statement Presentation LMA's net assets, support and revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net assets are those that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. Currently, LMA has only unrestricted net assets. LMA reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Gifts of long-lived operating assets such as land, buildings or equipment are reported as unrestricted support, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets 1trust be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service. Currently, LMA has not received any gifts of long-lived 
(d) Investments Investments, consisting of U.S. government and agency issues, are recorded at market value. Unrealized gains and losses on investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities are recorded in the statement of activities as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is temporarily or pernlanently (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Dividend, interest and other investment income is recorded as increases on unrestricted net assets unless the use is restricted by donor. (e) Depreciation and Amortization Depreciation and amortization arc computed using straight-line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: P, uildit~gs Building fixtures Office equipment Automotive equipment Land improvements Computer equipment and software 

40 years 5-10 years 5-10 years 3-5 years 5 years 3-5 years O0 Dues Income - LMA Amounts collected in the current year for membership dues for the following year are recorded as unearned income in the current year. Dues for tile current year not collected at December 31 are not recorded as income for the current year. 

~) 
Administrative Fees and Commissions Amounts earned in the current year are based on an estimate of earned normal premium of LMRMA, which approximates actual. Any adjustments from estimated earned normal premium to actual earned normal premium are adjusted in the year in which they become known. Consolidated Statements" of Cash Flows For the pnrposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts with banks. Certificates of deposit have been excluded from cash because the certificates are normally purchased for periods exceeding 90 days. (2) Investments The market value of investments by security type at December 31, 1998 and 1997 are as follows 
U.S. Government Agency obligations U.S. Treasury securities 

1998 1997 451,820 953.001 $ 1.404.82 
571,797 376.913 948.710 Investment income of $85,250 for the year ended December 31, 1998 includes unrealized gains of $6,662. Investment income of $73,259 for the year et~ded December 31, 1997 includes unrealized gains of $3,877. 

6 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 
(3) Related Parity Transactions (a) Fees and Services LMA provides services related to the LMRMA's self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective earned normal premiums (ENP) or on a per covered participant (PCP) basis. LMA also receives all investment earnings of the Workers' Compensation and Public Liability programs as part of the administrative fee. Amounts have been returned by LMA to the LMRMA based on the Board's discretion. The following schedule recaps administrative fees earned by LMA from LMRMA for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997. 

1998: Expenses incurred by LMRMA: Workers' Compensation Public Liability Accident and Health 
1997: Expenses incurred by LMRMA: Workers' Compensation $ Public Liability Accident and Health 

Adminis- trative fee LMA 
157,976 124,279 17.725 299.980 
175,352 139,180 17.842 332.374 

Net interest earned portion 
1,694,686 1,189,032 
2,883,718 
1,197,797 961,626 

Total adminis- trative fees 
1,852,662 1,313,311 17,725 3,183,698 
1,373,149 1,100,806 17,842 2.491,797 

Duefrom LMRMA 
1,570,260 1,065,044 1.599 2.636.903 
1,090,747 852,538 1,381 

In 1996, LMA' s board resolved to rebate $346,479 and $292,208 of 1995' s earned administrative fees to LMRMA - Workers' Compensation Fund and LMRMA - Public Liability Fund, respectively, to be available to participants for 1997 premium payments. In addition, LMA's board also contributed $638,686 to LMRF and $825,000 to LMRMA - Accident and Health Fund. Total 1996 rebates, reflected as participant funding in the consolidated statements of activities, were $2,102,373. in 1997, LMA's board resolved to rebate $720,000 and $600,000 of 1996's earned administrative fees to LMRMA - Workers' Compensation Fund and LMRMA - Public Liability Fund, respectively, to be available to participants for 1998 premium payments. In addition, LMA's board also contributed $61,200 to RMI. Total 1997 rebates, reflected as participant funding in the consolidated statements of activities, were $1,381,200. (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
In 1998, LMA's board resolved to rebate $600,000 and $600,000 of 1997's earned administrative fees to LMRMA - Workers' Compensation Fund and LMRMA - Public Liability Fund, respectively, to be available to participants for 1999 premium payments. Total 1998 rebates, reflected as participant funding in the consolidated statements of activities, were $1,200,000. LMA provides legal assistance for the various LMA Funds and is reimbursed by the Funds. The legal department earued $280,962 and $268,590 from LMRMA during the years coded December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. RMI has a contract with LMRMA to provide service agent services for a percentage of earned normal premium. Balances and amounts from transactions with LMRMA duriug the years ended December 31 are as follows: 
Service fees earned Pement of RMI's total service fees and commissions Balance doe from LMRMA 

1998 1.546.859 
84.7% 
1,671,944 
89.8% 274,017 RMI pays LMA administrative and accounting fees for services performed on its behalf. The total administrative and accounting fees were $50,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997. In addition, beginning January 1, 1995, RMI receives a five percent commission on reinsurance purchased by LMRFA. LMRMA provides accident and health insurance to LMA and RML The total consolidated insurance expense (included in employee benefits) was $123,031 and $123,331 for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. LMA has agreed to provide up to $300,000 to RMI to cover fulure operating losses. (b) Note Payable Prior to December 31, 1990, LMA negotiated a demand collateral mortgage note with LMRMA to fund the construction of LMA's office complex. The note bears an interest rate equal to the average investment return yield on LMRMA - Public Liability Fund investments (6.34% and 6.33% at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively). LMA incurred interest of $118,142 and $154,121 with respect to the note for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Current monthly payments of $20,425 are due the first day of each month based on a 360 month amortization. Collateral for the note is LMA's land and buildings. In both 1998 and 1997, the LMA board gave LMRMA - P0blic Liability Fund $400,000 and $518,749, respectively, as part of the excess interest distribution to be used as a reduction in the balance of the note. 

8 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 
The principal balance due at December 31, 1998 was $1,405,758 with principal payments scheduled as follows: 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 and after 

158,814 164,382 176,055 188,567 201,947 515,993 1,405,758 (4) Land, Building and Equipment Land, building and equipment consist of the following as of December 31 : 1998 1997 Land Buildings and leasehold improvements Furniture and equipment Vehicles 
Accumulated depreciation 

491,000 4,797,986 1,139,576 166.463 6,613,680 6,595,025 (2,226,355) (2,052,027) 
(5) Other Assets Other assets consist of the following as of December 31 
Deferred tax benefit loterestreceivable 

(6) Income Taxes 
$ 1998 49,122 19.074 68.196 

4,542,998 
1997 49,122 17.037 66.159 

LMA is incorporated as a non-profit organization and has been granted an exemption from income taxes under Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
9 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements I)ecember 31, 1998 and 1997 
RMI as a taxable entity had a tax provided in 1996 of $4,436; no tax was due in 1997. Timing differences between book and taxable income exist due to the liability for estimated future claims processing costs. A deferred tax asset has been recorded at December 31, 1998 and 1997. No tax benefit has been recorded as a result of RMI's net operating loss carryforwards. (7) Multi-employer Pension Plan All of LMA and RMI's full-time employees participate in Plan A of the Municipal Employee's Retirement System of Louisiana (the Plan), a multiple-employer municipal employee retirement system. The payroll for LMA's employees covered by the Plan for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $662,833 and $678,948, respectively. Payroll for RMI's employees covered by the Plan for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $752,2i0 and $579,014, respectively. All employees of LMA and RM1 are required to participate in the Plan if they are under the age of 60, are full-time employees, and are not participating in another publicly funded retirement system. Any employee can retire provided he or she meets one of the following criteria: any age with 30 or more years of credited service, age 55 with 25 years of credited service, or age 60 with a minimum of 10 years of credited service. Retirees are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years of creditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of the member's final salary. Employees become fully vested on reaching 10 years of service. The Plan also provides survivor's and disability benefits. Covered employees are required to contribute a percentage of their salary to the Plan (the rate is determined by the Plan and can fluctuate). Of the total 9.25% contribution required by the employee however, the employees contribute 5%, while LMA and RMI contribute the remainder. The contribution requirement for LMA for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $99,936 and $102,872, which consisted of $66,624 and $69,132 from LMA (including administrative fee), and $33,312 and $33,740 from employees, respectively. The contribution requirement for RM1 for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $112,832 and $88,783, which consisted of $75,221 and $59,833 from RMI, and $37,611 and $28,950 from employees, respectively. (8) Lease During 1992, RMI entered into a five-year non-cancelable lease with LMA for the space it conducts its operations in from LMA for $20,425 per month. The lease has a five-year renewal option exercisable by RMI if notice is given to LMA within thirty days of expiration. During the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, RM1 paid LMA rent as shown below. In addition, RMI has agreed to act as the leasing agent for LMA's building. As part of this agreement, RMI is entitled to a fee equal to the revenues from rent collected from tenants of the building (excluding RMrs rent paid to LMA) less appropriate expenses such as, but not limited to, utilities, repairs and maintenance, and certain insurance coverages. Below is a recap of transactions relating to this rent agreement between LMA and RMI for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997. 
RMrs rent paid to LMA (eliminated in consolidation) Rent received by RMI Building expenses incurred by RMI Net rental expense 

1998 1997 260,445 (83,684) 64,330 235,901 (77,319) 76.814 $ 241,091 235,396 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARY Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(9) Deferred Compensation Plan LMA offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. This plan, available to all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Prior to 1997, all amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are (until paid or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of LMA (without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), subject only to the claims of LMA's general creditors. During 1997, LMA modified its plan to qualify under the applicable ]nterual Revenue Code section. This qualification protects the assets of the deferred compensation plan fiom LMA's creditors. LMA's fiduciary responsibility includes overseeing the use of the plan assets. Prior to the qualification of the plan, participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the Association in an amount equal to the fair rnarket value of the deferred account for each participant; consequently, as of December 31, 1996, plan assets were recorded on the Association's balance sheet together with a corresponding liability to plan participants. Subsequent to the qualification of the plan, the plan assets have been established in a trust protecting participants' assets and plan assets are no longer included on the Association's balance sheet. (10) Claim Processing Payable As service agent for the LMRMA, RMI has responsibility for administration of the claims related to the 1998 Fund year and prior years. This liability has been estimated based on the costs necessary to fulfill this obligation to continue as service agent for the years for which revenue has been received and recognized. 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Accident and Health Fund: 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Accident and Health Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Accident and Health Fund as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The year 2000 supplementary information on page 11 is not a required part of the financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the nature of the subject matter underlying the disclosure requirements and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the matters to be disclosed have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Fund is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the Fund's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Fund does business are or will become year 2000 compliant. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June l 1, 1999, on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 
June 11, 1999 
Illl 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND 

Cash (note 4) investments (note 4) Reinsurance receivable Accounts receivable Accrued interest receivable 
Liabilities 

Assets 
Balance Sheets December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Total assets Liabilities and Retained Earnings 
Unpaid claims liability (note 3) Due to affiliates (note 2) Accounts payable 
Retained earnings 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 66,912 2,846,220 63,614 68,846 29,275 $ 3,074,867 
1,837,000 38,976 161.512 

2,060,599 575.734 132,471 10.791 2,779,595 
2,010,000 32,493 344,102 2,037,488 2,386,595 1,037,379 393,000 3.074.867 2,779,595 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 

Operating revenues; Premium income Investment income Contribution (note 2(b)) 

Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Total operating revenue Operating expenses: Administrative fees (note 2) Claims expense (note 3) Reinsurance premiums Service agent fees (note 2) Miscellaneous Total operating expenses Net income Retained earnings, beginning of year Relained earnings, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$ 
1998 1997 
8,469,293 127,388 4.000 8,600,68 
17,725 7,049,006 471,973 405,230 12,368 7,956,302 

8,297,159 108,887 4.000 8,410,046 
17,842 7,375,116 357,112 398,895 4.800 8,153,765 644,379 256,281 393.000 136,719 $ 1,037,379 393,000 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND Statements of Cash Flows Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations: Decrease (increase) in reinsurance receivable Decrease (increase) in receivables Decrease in unpaid claims liability Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, due to affiliates Total adjustments Net cash provided by operating activities Cash flows from investing activities Purchase of investments Sales/maturities of investments lnvestmenl interest received Net cash used in investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash, beginning of year Cash, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 
644,379 (127,388) 516,991 
512,120 63,625 (173,000) 
226.638 743.629 (1,376,981) 596,537 103.727 

256,281 (108,887) 47.394 
(368,950) (45,214) (20,000) 289.272 
2,502 (1,410,699) 1,300,696 105,243 

66,912 
$ 66,912 

(2,258) 2,258 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND 

(1) Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public liability coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341- 1350, all local government subdivisions in the State of Louisiana are eligible to participate. Tile Accidenl and Health Fund's (the Fund) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal risk management, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the Louisiana Municipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fund underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the board of the Fund after consultation with the actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claims. Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LMA acts as the administrator for the Fund. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance funds. RMI, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LMA. Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA) was formed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess funds to provide reinsurance. Adrninistration of the Agency is vested in the Executive Board of LMA. As of both December 31, 1998 and 1997, there were 82 and 72 participating municipalities, respectively. The various LMRMA Funds, LMA and RMI are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Although all of these entities are related parties, their various fund balances are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason, each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 and GASB 14. (b) Basis of Accounting The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. (c) Investments Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and losses 
(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND ItEALTH FUND Notes to Financial Statements Decembel 31, 1998 and 1997 
on investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. Investments include certificates of deposit, money market accounts, repurchase agreements and U.S. government Agency obligations. (d) l'remium Income and Accounts Receivable Premiums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any adjustments to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate and are recognized in the year they become known. (e) Unpaid Claims Liability The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have beer) reported but nol settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used ill computing claims liability does not necessarily result ill an exact amount. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expenses in the period in which they are made. The carrying amount of liabilities for claims losses and claims expenses is presented at the estimated claim amounts in the financial statements. (f) Cash and Cash Equivalents For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and repurchase agreements are usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more or are reinvested continuously, they are classified as investments. (g) Reinsurance The Fund uses reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Further description of the reinsurance coverage is described in note 5. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge the primary liability of the Fund as direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Fund does not report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. Claims expense consists of claims incurred during the current year, adjustments to the accounting estimate of prior years' claims expense and a reduction for claims covered by the reinsurer in accordance with the reinsurance policy. 

6 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 
(It) Income Taxes The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Interna Revenue Code. (i) Use of Estimates Management of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conforlnity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. (2) Related Party Transactions LMA, RMI and LMRFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective earned normal premiums as follows: 
Expenses: Administrative fees - LMA ($0.60 per person per month) Service agent fees - RMI ($13.05 for health participants and $1.20 for dental participants) Due to affiliates LMA RMI 

1998 1997 
17,725 
405.230 
1,599 37,377 38,976 

The Fund changed its reinsurer in 1995 as described in note 5 

17.842 
398.895 
1,381 31,112 32,493 

(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(3) Claims Expense and Unpaid Claims Reserve The following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997: 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of year Incurred claims and claim adjustment expense-provision for insured events Total incurred claims and claims adjustment expense Less payments - claims and claim adjustment expenses 

1998 1997 (Amounts in thousands) 
2,010 7.077 2,030 8,237 
9,087 10,267 

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of year 1,886 2,747 Less claims covered by reinsurer (49) (737) Unpaid claims reserve 837 2.010 Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years (4) Deposits and Investments The Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these agencies shall be limited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits ill financial institutions may exceed the federally insured amount in any one financial institution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution. In regard to deposits and investments, the Fund is in compliance with these revised provisions as of and during the period ended December 31, 1998 and 1997. All demand deposits and certificates of deposit are insured or collateralized by pledged securities held by an agent in the name of the Fund. 1998 1997 Insured Uninsured 
8 
$ 66,912 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
There were no demand deposits at December 31, 1997 Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest ally surplus monies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, as well as financial institutions. Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts, U.S. Government obligations and repurchase agreements. During 1995, the Fund changed its policy of maintaining a cash account into wire transferring cash as needed from investments to support disbursements. Consequently, a zero cash balance is now maintained. The Fund's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by tile Fund at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or agent in the Fund's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which ',he securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Fund's name. The Fund's investments are categorized below as of December 31 
Certificates of deposit Money market accounts U.S. Government Agencies U.S. Government Treasury securities 

1998 1997 Category 100,000 807,731 1,160,821 777.668 
100,000 1,147,545 642,846 170,208 2,060,599 The certificates of deposit are insured or collateralized by obligations of the U.S. Government registered in the name of and held by the Fund's agent. The scheduled maturities of investrnents held were as follows at December 31 

Due in one year Due after one year through five years 
1998 1997 1,612,939 1,233,281 $ 2,846,220 

1,844,538 216,061 2.060.599 

(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl. RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT AND HEALTH FUND 

(5) Reinsurance Policy Coverage 
Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 

The Fund and its reinsurers represent a cooperative program for group funding and risk management of accident and health claims of participating Louisiana nrunicipalities. Although premiums billed to the participants are determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claims remains with the participants, and the Fund has the authority to assess the participants to fund any deficits incurred. Subsequent to December 31, 1994, the Fund obtained reinsurance from a commercial insurer to provide the following coverage: Annual aggregate in excess of 125% of annual aggregate retention $900,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss The commercial reinsurer covered all claims incurred in 1995 and thereafter. No claims for reinsurance are outstanding from LMRFA as of December 31, 1998 and 1997. 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY ACCIDENT & HEALTH FUND Year 2000 Disclosures (Unaudited) 
The following is a synopsis of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Accident & Health Fund's (the Agency) actions to ensure that our agency is year 2000 compliant. The Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is the administrator of the fund. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is the third party administralor of the fund. These parties must be year 2000 compliant for the fund to be compliant. The LMRMA Funds, LMA, and RMI are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Awareness Stage The Deputy Director of LMA began assessing the computer systems in 1998. The director of RMI began assessing their computer system in 1996. Assessment Stage The Deputy Director of LMA assessed the computer systems and determined which systems needed upgrading to be year 2000 compliant. $13,400 was budgeted in 1999 for computer equipment, and $4,000 was budgeted in 1999 for computer software replacement. The director of RMI hired a computer consultant to assure their computer hardware and software would be year 2000 compliant. Remediation Stage All LMA computer hardware and software needed to become year 2000 compliant was purchased and installed in the first quarter of 1999. Written notification from accounting software provider was obtained assuring compliance. RMI software and hardware were updated in 1998. Validation/Testing Stage LMA has assurances from its vendors that its equipment and software are year 2000 compliant. RMI tested their system in February 1999 and performed a final test of the system in March 1999. All of their systems are now year 2000 compliant. Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that LMRMA is or will be year 2000 ready, that the Agency's remediation effort will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the Agency does business will be year 2000 ready. 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
Officers and Tnlstees Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Accident and Health Fund: 
We have audited the financial statements of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Accident and Health Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated June 11, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements arc free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Govermnent Auditing Standards. nternal Control Over Financial Reoortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all maters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts thal would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana Municipal Risk Managemen! Agency Accident and Health Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
June lh 1999 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139G599 

Independent Auditors' Report 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Public Liability Fund: 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Public Liability Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the rclated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and with Government Auditing Stut~dards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Public Liability Fund as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 11, 1999, on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The year 2000 supplementary information on page 13 is not a required part of the financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the nature of the subject matter underlying the disclosure requirements and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the mailers to be disclosed have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Fund is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the Fund's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Fund does business are or will become year 2000 compliant, 
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Our audits were made for the pnrpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the Schedule is presented for purposes of addition~d analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected tc~ tbe auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
June 11. 1999 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND 

Cash (note 4) Investments (note 4) Deductibles receivable Accounts receivable Accrued interest receivable Note receivable (note 2) 

Assets 
Balance Sheets December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings Liabilities: Unpaid claims liability (note 3) Unearued premium Due to affiliates (note 2) Accrued expenses 
Retained earnings 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 187,470 4,668,737 65,186 87,243 65,604 1,405,758 16,479,998 
8,379,095 2,134,679 1,075,534 3.383 

599,325 15~051,564 70,879 77,515 118,297 1.932.711 17,850.291 
9,122,845 2,140,490 1,492,045 4.077 11,592,691 12,759,457 4.887.307 5,090.834 $ 16,479,998 17,850,29 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 
Revenues: Premium income Investment income (note 2) 

Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Total revenue Expenses: Claims expense (note 3) Administrative fees (note 2) Reinsurance premiums (note 2) Service agent (note 2) Miscellaneous Total expenses Net income (loss) Retained earnings, beginning of year Retained earnings, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

6,208,246 1,207,968 7,416,214 
4,167,643 1,313,311 1,522,415 590,324 26.048 7,619,741 

1997 
6,946,391 1,251,583 8.197.974 
439,327 100,806 704,960 661,107 29,658 7,935,858 (203,527) 262,116 5,090,834 4,828,718 4,887,307 5.090.834 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Statements of CashFlows Years ended December31, 1998 and 1997 
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income (loss) Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operations: (Increase) decrease in receivables Increase (decrease) in unpaid claims liability Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses, unearned premiums and due to affiliates Total adjustments Net cash used in operating activities Cash flows from investing activities: Purchase of investments Sale/maturity of investments Investment interest received Principal payments from note receivable Net cash provided by investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash, beginning ofyear Cash, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 
(203,527) (1,207,968) (1,411,495) 
(4,035) (743,750) (423,016) (I,170,801) 

262,116 (1,251,583) (989,467) 
57,214 (290,922) 387,725 154.017 (2,582,296) (835,450) (5,579,409) 6,120,378 1,102,519 526,953 2,170,441 
(5,117,477) 4,228,421 1,307,369 609,723 1,028.036 (411,855) 192,586 599.325 406,739 187,470 599,325 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Stalements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(1) Significant Accounting Policies (a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public liability coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341- 1350, all local government subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The Public Liability Fund's (the Fund) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal risk management, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. Local govermnental subdivisions joining the fund must be members of the Louisiana Municipal Association; a member may withdraw from the fund by giving proper notice. Fund underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the Board of the Fund after consultation with the actuaries. If the assets of the fund were to be exhausted, members would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claims. Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is incorporated as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LMA acts as the administrator for the Fund. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is a third party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance funds. RMI, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LMA. Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA) is formed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess funds to provide reinsurance. Administration of LMRFA is vested in the Executive Board of LMA. LMRFA reinsures the LMRMA Public Liability Fund. As of both December 31, 1998 and 1997, there were 179 and 194 participating municipalities, respectively. The various LMRMA Funds, LMA and RMI are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Although all of these entities are related parties, their respective equity amounts are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 and GASB 14. (b) Basis of Accounting The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. (c) Investments Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and losses on 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl. RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Staternents December 31, 1998 and 1997 
investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. Investments include certificates of deposit, money market accounts, repurchase agreements and U.S. govermncnt agency obligations and are held for long-term investment purposes. (d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable Premiums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any adjustments to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate and are recognized ill the year they become known. Accounts receivable are current and considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore no reserve for bad debts has been established. (e) Unpaid Claims Liability The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing the claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as general liability. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims liability are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. The costs associated with new and renewal contracts as acquisition costs are immaterial to the financial statements and are expensed when incurred. The carrying amount of liabilities for claim losses and claim expenses are presented at present value in the financial statements. Such reserves have been discounted at 5.8% and 6.0% at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. (f) Statement of Cash Flows For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and repurchase agreements are usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more. they are classified as investments. (g) Reinsurance The Fund uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge the primary liability of the Fund as direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Fund does not report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. As of May 1, 1986, LMRFA became the reinsurer for the Fund, 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBL! C LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(h) Income Taxes The Agency is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and I 15(1) of the lnterna Revenue Code. (i) Use of Estimates Managernent of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, Actual results could differ from those estimates. (2) Related Party Transactions (a) Fees and Services LMA, RMI and LMRFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective earned normal premiums (ENP) as follows: 1998 1997 Expenses: Administrative fee - LMA (2% of ENP plus interest earned) $ 1,313,311 Service agent - RMI (9.5% of ENP) $ 590,324 Reinsurance - LMRFA (24.5% of ENP) $ 1,522,415 Reinsurance recoveries - LMRFA $ 2,306,234 Due to (from) affiliates LMA RM1 LMRFA $ J,065,044 67,824 (57,334) 1,075,534 

1,100,806 661,107 1,704.960 
697.951 
852,538 166,457 473,050 

LMA receives all interest earnings of the Fund as part of this administrative fee. Amounts have been returned by LMA to the Fund based on the Board's discretion. (b) Note Receivable LMA has a variable rate note agreement with the Fund. The note hears an interest rate equal to the average investment return yielded the Fund on its other investments (6.34% and 6.33% at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively). LMA is currently makiug monthly payments of $20,425 due the first day of each month based on a 360 month amortization. Collateral for this note is a building owned by LMA. The Fund earned interest of $118,142 and $154,121 in respect to the note for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively, In 1998, the 
8 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl, RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Fund received $400,000 as part of the 1997 excess interest distribution to be used as a reduction in the balance of the note. The payments on principal balance due at December 3 I, 1998 are scheduled as follows 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004and thereafter 

158,814 164,382 176,055 188,567 201,947 515.993 
$ 1,405,758 (c) Premium Rebates During 1996, the Fund's participants used $402,656 of cumulative unearned credits. In addition, the Fund received a rebate of $292,208 from LMA's board related to 1995 earned administrative fees which will be available to participants for 1997 premium payments. During 1997, the Fund's participants used $286,991 unearned credits. In addition, the Fond received a rebate of $896,333 from LMA's board related to 1996 earned administrative fees which will be available to participants for 1998 premium payments. In addition, the Fond received $518,749 as a reduction in the notes receivable from LMA. During 1998, the Fund's participants used $434,372 of unearned credits. In addition, the Fund received a rebate of $600,000 from LMA's Board related to 1997 earned administrative fees which will be available for participants for 1999 premium payments. In addition, the Fond received $400,000 as a reduction in the notes receivable from LMA. (3) Claims Expense alld Unpaid Claims Reserve The following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years encled December 31, 1998 and 1997: 1998 1997 Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of year Incurred claims and claim adjustment 22,175 20,02 

expenses: Provision for insured events of the current year 6,016 7,920 Decrease in provision for insured events of prior years (1,440) (1,719) Total incurred claims and claims adjustment expense 4,576 6,201 
(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl. RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 
Payments: Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable of insured events of current year $ Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of prior years Total payments Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of year Less discounting at 5.8% and 6.0% for 1998 and 1997, respectively Less claims covered by reinsurer (net of discount) Unpaid claims reserve 

1998 1997 Amounts in thousands) 
(687) (655) 
(8,572) (3,392) (9,259) (4,047) 
17,492 22,175 
(2,632) (3,749) 

$ 8,379 9,123 
(4) Deposits and Investments The Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these agencies shall be limited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits in financial institutions may exceed the federally insured amount in any one financial institution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution in question. In regard to deposits and investments, the Agency is in compliance with these revised provisions during the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997. The demand deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year end. "Insured" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurance or pledged collateral. "Uninsured" deposits are those balances in excess of federal depository insurance or pledged collateral. 1998 1997 Insured Uninsured 
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187.470 
187.470 

599,325 
599.325 
(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest ally surplus monies in obligations of the U.S. Governrnent and its agencies as well as financial institutions. Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase agreemeuls. 

Certificates of deposit $ Money market accounts U.S. Government Agency obligation~ U.S. Treasury securities 

Fair value 100,000 1,052,076 11,659,036 1,857,625 $ 14,668,737 

Category 
l 
Fair value 100,000 959,127 11,050,682 2,941,755 

The scheduled maturities of investments were as follows at December 31 
Due in one year Due after one year through five years Due afler five years through ten years Due after ten years 

1998 1997 1,429.986 4,704,293 2,323,131 6,211,327 $ 14,668,737 

Category _ 

3,734,350 4,536,299 2,095,438 4,685.477 15,051,564 

Included in investment balances as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 are derivative investments. These investments included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating rate securities with a market value of $3,886,588 and $4,103,407 as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. These derivative investments are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience future market value fluctuations. 
(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(5) Reinsurance Policy Coverage During the periods ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, LMRFA provided reinsurance to LMRMA Public Liability Fund with the following aggregate: ltem I: $5,000,000 annual aggregate excess of 65% of earned normal premium Item 11:$400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss The Fund ani:l LMRFA represent a cooperative program for group funding and risk management of public liability claims of participating Louisiana municipalities. Although premiums billed to the participants arc determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for clairns remains with the participants. Prior to 1993, Louisiana law limited the liability of the municipalities to $500,000 per occurreuce. During 1993, the Louisiana Supreme Court revoked this limit. The above "specific reinsurance limits" for the Public Liability fund cover claims up to $500,000. As of November 1, 1995, the statutory liability increased to $750,000 from $500,000. The Fund's coverage remains unchanged. The following are balance sheets for LMRFA for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 Assets 
Cash hlvestments Accrued interest receivable Due from affiliates Reinsurance receivable 
Liabilities 

1998 1998 $ 100,326 29,693,877 332.194 408.258 $ 30,534,655 
abilities and Retained Earnines 

Unpaid claims reserve Reinsurance payable Due to affiliate Unearned premium Accrued expense 
Retained earnings 

12 

100,344 27,882,054 343,900 565,715 128,806 29,020,819 
14,882,000 580,803 108,486 9,236 12,855,642 15,580,525 17,679,013 13,440,294 $ 30.534.655 29.020,819 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Year 2000 Disclosures (Unaudited) 
The following is a synopsis of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency's (LMRMA) actions to ensure that our agency is year 2000 compliant. The Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is the administrator of the fund. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is the third party administrator of the fund. These parties musl be year 2000 compliant for the fund to be compliant. The LMRMA Funds, LMA, and RMI are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Awareness Stage The Deputy Director of LMA began assessing the computer systems in 1998. The director of RMI began assessing their computer system in 1996. Assessment Stage The Deputy Director of LMA assessed the computer systems and determined which systems needed upgrading to be year 2000 compliant. $13,400 was budgeted in 1999 for computer equipment, and $4,000 was budgeted in 1999 for computer software replacement. The director of RMI hired a computer consultant to assure their computer hardware and software would be year 2000 compliant. Remediation Stage All LMA computer hardware and software needed to become year 2000 compliant was purchased and installed in the first quarter of 1999. Written notification from accounting software provider was obtained assuring compliance. RMI software and hardware were updated in 1998. Validation/Testing Stage LMA has assurances from its vendors that its equipment and software are year 2000 compliant. RMI tested their system in February 1999 and performed a final test of the system in March 1999. All of their systems are now year 2000 compliant. Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that LMRMA is or will be year 2000 ready, that the Agency's remediation effort will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the Agency does business will be year 2000 ready. 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY PUBLIC LIABILITY FUND Schedule December 31. 1998 The lable below illustrates Ihe Fund's earned normal premium and investment income compared to related costs and claims expense {net of loss assul~led by reinsurers) incurred by tile Fund as of tile end of 1998 and as of the end of each of the last nine years, 998 1997 1996 ~" 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 198q (in thousands) ENP and investmenl income $ 7,416 Operating costs unallocated 
expense, end of policy year 

8,198 3,497 7,729 3,499 7,605 3,376 7,179 3.213 7,170 3,247 7,179 3,031 @890 3,062 6,789 2,991 6,600 2,921 
4,039 4,545 4,583 4,243 3,976 3.930 4,003 3.843 3.814 3,799 
687 655 ,362 

Re-eslimated incurred claims and claims expense: End of policy year 4,039 4,545 One year laler 4,545 Two years later Three years laler Four years later Five years later Six years later Seven years later Eight years later Nine years later 

630 1,379 2,137 

4,583 4,583 4,583 

463 1,216 2,815 3,524 

4,243 4.243 4,243 4,243 

528 1.625 2,482 3,119 3,400 

3,976 3,976 3,976 3,976 3,976 

( I ) Effective Janualy I. 1996, the Fund accounted for investments on a fair value basis. See accompanying independent audilors' report, 

409 1,105 2.019 2.575 3,027 3,286 

3,930 3.930 3.930 3,930 3.930 3.930 

337 1,249 2,668 3,297 3,531 3,526 3,578 
4,003 4,037 4,037 4.037 4,037 4,037 4,037 

415 984 2,007 2.613 2.721 2,807 2,835 2.840 
3.843 3.843 3,877 3,877 3,877 3.877 3,877 3,877 
34 34 

479 1.081 1,802 2,556 2,752 2,946 3,195 3,386 3.485 
3.814 3.814 3,814 3,829 3.829 3,829 3,829 3,829 3,829 

341 931 1,750 2,474 2,841 3,129 3,329 3,320 3,317 3.332 
3.799 3,799 3,685 3,604 3.804 3,804 3,804 3,8(14 3,804 3,804 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans. LA 70139-3599 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based On an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Public Liability Fund: 
We have audited the financial statements of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Public Liability Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated June I 1, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material misslatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracls and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. Internal Control Over Financial Reoortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

Bill 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Public Liability Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
June 11. 1999 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Financial Statements and Schedule December 31, 1998 and 1997 
With Independent Auditors' Report Thereon 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Workers' Compensation Fund: 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Workers' Compensation Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Workers' Compensation Fund as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The year 2000 supplementary information on page 13 is not a required part of the financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the nature of the subject matter underlying the disclosure requirements and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the matters to be disclosed have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Fund is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the Fund's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Fund does business are or will become year 2000 compliant. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 11, 1999, on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

llll 



Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information included in the Schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
June 11. 1999 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND 

Assets investments (note 4) Accounts receivable Reinsurance receivable (note 3) Accrued interest receivable 

Balance Sheets December 31. 1998 and 1997 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings Liabilities: Unpaid claims liability (note 3) Due to affiliates (note 2) Unearued premium (note 2) Accrued expenses 
Retained earnings 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 23,153,443 2,126,313 163,807 288,535 25,732,098 
4,418,000 1,583,866 882,985 204.634 

22,033,982 1,142,221 488,131 220.792 23.885.126 
5,786,000 1,259,860 1,749,037 208,045 7,089,485 9,002,942 18,642,613 14,882,184 23,885,126 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earaings Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Revenues: Premium income Excess interest contribution (note 2) Investment income Total revenue Expenses: Claims expense (note 3) Admiuistrative fees (note 2) Reinsurance premiums (note 2) Service agent fees (note 2) Second injury fund assessment Louisiana workers' compensation assessment Miscellaneous Total expenses Net income Retained earnings, beginning of year Retained earnings, end of year 
See accornpanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 
6,448,011 720,000 1,728,348 8,896,359 
1,809,120 1,852,662 644,801 551,305 188,453 48,818 40,771 5.135.930 

7,157,218 1,648,210 8,805,428 
1,528,860 1,373,149 715,722 611,942 70,076 17,546 46.750 4,364,045 3,760,429 4,441,383 4,882,184 10,440,80 $ 18,642,613 14,882.184 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl. RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPI~NSATION FUND Statements of Cash Flows Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operations: Decrease in receivables Decrease in unpaid claims liability, net of reinsurance receivable Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accnled expenses, unearned premiurns and due to affiliates Total adjustments Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities Cash flows from investing activities Investment interest received Purchase of investments Sale of investments Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities Net change in cash Cash, beginning of year Cash, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

1998 1997 
3,760,429 0,728,348) 2,032,081 

4,441,383 (1,648,210) 2,793,173 
(659368) (32-/,344) (1,368,000) (I,370,000) 

437,037 (2,573,225) (1,260,307) 
1,257,686 (12,458,533) 11,741,991 541,144 

1,532,866 
1,624,355 (6,287,001) 3,129,780 (1,532,866) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notesto Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(1) Significant Accounting Policies (a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's compensation, accident and health, and public liability coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341- 1350, all local government subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The LMRMA-Workers' Compensation Fund (the Fund) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal risk management, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the fired must be members of the Louisiana Municipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fund underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the board of the Fund, after consultation with the actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claims. Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LMA acts as the administrator for LMRMA. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance funds. RM1, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LMA. Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA) was formed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess funds to provide reinsurance. Administration of the Agency is vested in the Executive Board of LMA. LMRFA reinsures the LMRMA Workers' Compensation Fund. As of both December 31, 1998 and 1997, there were 199 and 188 participating municipalities, respectively. The various LMRMA Funds, LMA and LMRMA are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Although all of these entities are related parties, their various fund balances are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 and 14. (b) Basis of Accounting The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. (c) Investments Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and losses on 6 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. Investments include certificates of deposit, money market accounts, repurchase agreements and U.S. government Agency and Treasury obligations. (d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable Premiums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any adjustments to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate and are recognized in the year they become known. (e) Unpaid Claims Liability The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. The carrying amount of liabilities for claims losses and claims expense are presented at present value in the financial statements. The costs associated with new and renewed contracts and acquisition costs are immaterial to the financial statements and are expensed when incurred. Such reserves have been discounted at 5.8% and 6.0% at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. 09 Statement of Cash Flows For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and repurchase agreements are usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investments. (g) Reinsurance The Fund uses reinsurance agreements to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge the primary liability of the Fund as the direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Fund does not report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. As of May 1, 1986, LMRFA became the reinsurer for the Fund. (h) Income Taxes The Agency is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the htterna Revenue Code. 

7 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(i) Use of Estimates Management of the Funds has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. (2) Related Party Transactions (a) Fees and Services LMA, RMI and LMRFA provides services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of tile respective earned normal premiums (ENP) as follows: 1998 1997 Expenses: Administrative fee - LMA (2.45% of ENP plus interest earned) $ 1,852,662 Service Agent - RMI (8.55% of ENP) $ 551,305 1,373,149 611,942 Reinsurance - LMRFA (10% of ENP $ 644,801 715,722 Due to (from) affiliate LMA RMI LM RFA 
LMRFAreinsurance recoveries 

$ 1,570,260 19,642 (6,036) 1,583,866 653.524 
1,090,747 76,448 92,665 
488,13 

LMA also receives all interest earnings of LMRMA as part of this administrative fee. Amounts have been returned by LMA to the Fund based on the Board's discretion. During 1997, LMA's board resolved to rebate $720,000 of the 1996 earned administrative fees back to the Fund; of the cumulative unearned premium amount, $314,931 was used by municipalities in the form of credits toward their 1997 earned normal premium payments; outstanding credits of $233,193 are available to municipalities for their 1998 premium payments and are included in unearned premiums as of December 31, 1997. Also included in unearned premiums is $720,000 which the Fund will use in the form of a premium reduction to municipalities in 1998. During 1998, LMA's board resolved to rebate $600,000 of the 1997 earned administrative fees back to the fund. This amount is included in unearned premiums which the fund will use in the form of premium reductions to municipalities in 1999. The $720,000 of 1996 earned administrative fees distributed by LMA in 1997 is included in total revenues at December 31, 1998, 8 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(3) Claims Expense and Unpaid Claims Reserve The following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years ended December 31. 1998 and 1997: 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of year - gross $ Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses Provision for insured events of the current year Increase (decrease) in provision for insured events of prior years Total incurred c/aims and c/aims adjustment expense 

1998 1997 (Amoun~ in thousands) 17.372 18.838 
2,188 2.214 2,489 (217) 
4,402 2,272 Payments: Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of current year (469) (1,062) Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of prior years (6,619) (2,676) Total payments (7,088) (3,738) Total unpaid claims and claim adjust- ment expenses at end of year 14,686 17,372 Less discounting at 5.8% and 6.0% for 1998 and 1997 (4,525) (5,431) Less claims covered by reinsurer (net of discount) (5,743) (6,155) Unpaid claims reserve $ 4,418 5,786 

in addition to the unpaid claims covered by the reinsurers, there are $163,807 and $488,131 of paid claims which are recoverable from the reinsurer at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage. 
9 (Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notcsto Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(4) Deposits and Investments The Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these Fund's shall be limited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits in financial institutions may exceed the federally insured amount in any one financial institution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution. In regard to deposits and investments, the Agency is in compliance with these revised provisions during tile period ended December 31, 1998 and 1997. Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest any surplus monies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, as well as financial institutions. Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase agreements. During 1995, the Fund changed its policy of maintaining a cash account into wire-transferring cash as needed from investments to support disbursements. Consequently, a zero cash balance is now maintained. The Fund's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Fund at year-end. Category I securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or agent in the Fund's uanre. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Fund's name. The fair value for investments by security type at December 31, 1998 and 1997 are as follows: 

Certificates of deposit $ Money market accounts U.S. Government Agency Obligations U.S. Treasury Obligations 

1998 Fair value 100,000 1,347,984 11,202,608 10,502,851 $ 23,153,443 

Category 
1 l 

1997 Fair value 100,000 3,946,857 11,426,089 6.561.036 
Category 

(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
The scheduled maturities of investments held were as follows at December 31 
Due in one year Due after one year through five years Due after five years through ten years Due after ten years 

1998 1997 

$ 23,153,443 
8,470,976 7,363,523 2,560,137 3,639,346 22,033.982 Included in investment balances as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 are derivative investments. These investments included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating rate securities with a market value of $2,147,443 and $4,361,589 as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. These derivative investments are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience fnture market value fluctuations. (5) Reinsurance Policy Coverage During the periods ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, LMRFA provided reinsurance to the Fund with the following aggregate coverage. Item l: ltem ll $2,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 80% of earned normal premium $2,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $175,000 each and every loss 

The following are balance sheets for LMRFA for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 Assets 
Cash Accrued interest receivable Due from affiliates Investments Reinsurance receivable 

1998 1998 100,326 332,194 29,693,877 408,258 $ 30,534,655 
100,344 343,900 565,715 27,882,054 128.806 29,020,819 
(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 
Liabilities and Retained Earnings 1998 1998 Liabilities: Unpaid claims reserve Reinsurance payable Due to affiliate Unearned premium Accrued expense 

Retained earnings 

12,131,000 613,738 63,370 39,192 8,342 
4,882,000 580,803 108,486 9.236 12,855,642 15,580,525 17,679,013 $ 30,534,655 13,440,294 29.020.819 

Effective January l, 1995, LMRFA purchased reinsurance for workers' compensation claims from a third party reinsurer. The third party provided reinsurance to LMRFA with the following aggregatc coverage. $1,000,000 annual aggregate Itemll: $1,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $50,000 each and every loss up to $750,000 The third party reinsurer is only responsible for those claims incurred subsequent to January 1, 1995 LMRFA is the reinsurer for the claims incurred during the years prior to January 1, 1995. 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGES]lENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Year 2000 Disclosures (Unaudited) 

Awareness Stage Tile Deputy Director of LMA began assessing the computer systems in 1998. The director of RMI began assessing their computer system in 1996. Assessment Stage 

Remediation Stage All LMA computer hardware and software needed to become year 2000 compliant was purchased and installed in the first quarter of 1999. Written notification from accounting software provider was obtained assuring compliance. RM1 software and hardware were updated in 1998. Validation/Testing Stage LMA has assurances from its vendors that its equipment and software are year 2000 compliant. RMI tested their system in February 1999 and performed a final test of the system in March 1999. All of their systems are now year 2000 compliant. Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that LMRMA is or will be year 2000 ready, that the Agency's remediation effort will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the Agency does business will be year 2000 ready. 



 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND Schedule December 31, 1998 3 he table bclov, 10ustrates the Fund s earned normal premmm and investment income compared to related costs and claims expense Jncun ed by Ibe Fund as of the end of 1998 and as of the end of each of the last nine years 

Estimated incurred claims and expense, end of policy year 

Re-esfmated incurred claims and claims expense: End of policy year One year later Two yeats later Three years laler Four yeats later Five yeats laler Six years later Seven years later Eighl years later Nine years laler 

998 1997 996 tJ~ 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 -- --(m'~lousfffids) 1989 $ 8,896 8,805 8,094 9,506 9,569 9,886 8,572 3.327 2,836 2,889 3.380 2,991 3,136 2.529 4,621 469 4,979 811 1.377 

4,979 5,409 

5.811 725 1,218 1,280 

5,811 5.811 5,882 
Increase (decrease) in estimated incurred claims and expense from end ol policy year 430 2 

6,512 1,007 1,940 2,276 2,480 

6.512 6,413 6,413 6,593 

7,808 2,328 6.658 2.102 5,759 1,922 
6,352 7.041 5,913 4.678 4,526 3.957 819 2,736 2,137 2,456 2,511 

6.352 6.670 6,670 6,670 6.670 

1,033 ZI09 2,611 2,989 3.129 3,157 

7,04 I 6,770 7.163 7,163 7.163 7.163 

1,343 3,240 4.089 4.472 4,708 4,919 5,020 
5,913 5,656 5,656 6,020 6,020 6,020 6,020 

1,323 2,712 3.741 4.379 4,740 4,989 5,110 5,146 
4,678 5,309 5.270 5.270 5,270 5.270 5.270 5,258 

1.576 3.342 4,157 4.691 5.182 5.518 5.692 5,783 5.786 
4.526 4,825 4.825 4.244 4,744 4,244 4.744 4,744 4,939 

1,166 2.475 3.276 3,749 4,227 4,499 4.72(I 4,864 5.050 5.174 
3,957 3,973 3,973 3,973 3.999 3,999 3.999 3.999 3,999 4,007 

318 122 107 580 211 50 Effective Janua~ I, 1996, Ihe Fund accounted for investmentg on a fair value basis. Sec accompanying independenl auditors' report. 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Olluai/s, LA 70f39 3599 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency Workers' Compensation Fund: 
We have audited the financial statements of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Workers' Compensation Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated June 11, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As parl of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. nternal Control Over Financial ReDortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's intenml control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and nol to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

IIII ~ 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency - Workers' Compensation Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditors Office and the Commissioncl of Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
June 11, 1999 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139 3599 

Independent Auditors' Report 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (a quasi- public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditb~g Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 11, 1999, on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The year 2000 supplementary information on page 12 is not a required part of the financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the nature of the subject matter underlying the disclosure requirements and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the matters to be disclosed have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Fund is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the Fund's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Fund does business are or will become year 2000 compliant. 
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June 11, 1999 



Cash (note 4) Investments (note 4) Asset Due from affiliates (note 2), net Accrued interest receivable Reinsurance receivable 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Balance Sheets December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings Liabilities: Unpaid claims reserve (note 3) Unearned premium Reinsurance payable Due to affiliates (note 2) Accrued expenses Retained earnings, end of year Retained earnings 
See accompanying noles to financial slalements 

100,326 29,693,877 332,194 408,258 30,534,655 
12,131,000 39,192 613,738 63,370 8.342 12,855,642 17.679.013 30.534,655 

100,344 27,882,054 565,715 343.900 128.806 29,020.819 
14,882,000 108,486 580.803 9.236 15,580,525 13,440,294 29.020.819 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 

Revenues: Premium income (note 2) Investment income 
Years ended December 3 l, 1998 and 1997 

Total revenue Expenses: Claims expense (note 3) Reinsurance premium expense Miscellaneous Total expenses Net income Retained earnings, beginning of year Retained earnings, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$ 
1998 
2,362,234 2,112,148 4,474,382 (171,696) 361,122 46,237 235.663 4,238,719 13,440,294 17.679.013 

2,468,531 2,535,025 5,003,556 2,116,952 328,336 49.175 2,494A63 2,509,093 10,931,201 3,440,294 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Statements of Cash Flows Years ended December 31.1998 and 1997 
Cash flows from operating activities: Net income Less adjustment for investments income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operations: Decrease (increase) in due from affiliates and reinsurance receivable (Decrease) increase in unpaid claims reserve Increase in unearned premium due to affiliate, reinsurance payable, and accrued expenses Total adjustments Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities Cash flows from investing activities Purchase of investments Sale/maturity of investments Investment interest received Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash, beginning of year Cash, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 
4,238,719 (2,112,148) 2,126,571 2,509,093 _ (2,535,025) 
286,263 (251,054) (2,751,000) 26,117 (2,438,620) (312,049) (11,348,661) 9,913,827 1,746,865 312,031 (18) 100,344 100,326 

930,000 10,531 689.477 663,545 (7,160,341) 4,023,534 2,486,527 (650,280) 13,265 87,079 00,344 



(1) Significant Accounting Policies 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA or the Fund) was formed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling excess funds to provide reinsurance. Administration of the Agency is vested ill the Executive Board of LMA. LMRFA reinsures the Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) Public Liability, Workers' Compensation, and Accident and Health Funds. LMRFA also reinsures three municipalities. LMRMA was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's compensation, accident and health, and public liability coverage for its member organizations. Ill accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local government subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The program's general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member local governmental subdivisions, a program of interlocal risk management, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the Louisiana Municipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fund underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the Board of LMRMA after consultation with the actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, members would only be responsible for their respective outstanding claims. Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is incorporated as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LMA acts as the administrator for LMRMA. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance funds. RMI, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LMA. The various LMRMA Funds, LMA and RMI are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Although all of these entities are related parties, their various equity accounts are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 and GASB 14. (b) Basis of Accounting The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. (c) Investments Investments are reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and losses on 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAl, RESERVE FUND AGENCY Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. Investments inchlde certificates of deposit, money market accounts, repurchase agreements, and U.S. government Agency and Treasury obligations. (d) Premium Income and Due from Affiliates The promiunr income of LMRFA collected in the current year is based on a percentage of earned normal premium of LMRMA workers' compensation and public liability funds (see note 2). For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, LMRFA provided reinsurance directly to municipalities for a total premium of $125,724 and $112,423, respectively. Tile costs associated with new and renewed contracts, as acquisition costs, are immaterial to the financial statements and are expensed when incurred. (e) Unpaid Claims Liabili~. The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid claims. Because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as general liability. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce current estimates thai reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit ill the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. The carrying amount of liabilities for claims losses and claims expenses are presented at present value ill the financial statements. Such reserves have been discounted at 5.8% and 6.0% at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. Or) Statement of Cash Flows For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in-demand deposit accounts with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and repurchase agreements are usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investments (see note 4). (g) lncome Taxes The Agency is exemptfromfederalincometaxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1)ofthclnternal Revenue Code. 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(It) Use of Estimates Management of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. (2) Related Party Transactions LMA, RMI and LMRFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective earned normal premiums (ENP) as follows: 
Reinsurance income LMRMA: Public Liability Workers' Compensation 
Due (to) from affiliate: LMRMA Public Liability LMRMA Workers' Compensation 

Reinsurance Fee 1998 1997 
24.5% ENP $ 10.0% ENP 1,522,415 644,801 1,704,960 715.722 $ 2,167,216 2,420,682 
$ (57,334) (6,036) 473,050 92.665 565.715 (3) Claims Expense and Unpaid Claims Reserve The following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years ended 1)ecernber 31. 1998 and 1997: 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of year $ Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: Provision for insured events of the current year Decrease in provision for insured events of prior years 

1998 1997 (Amounts in thousands) 
21,990 19,977 
2,302 3,901 (3,813) (575) Total incurred claims and claims adjustment expense ( 1,511 ) 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Notes to Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 

Payments: Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of current year 
1998 1997 Amounts in thousands) 

(140) Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of prior years (2,979) (1,173) Total payments Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of year 
(2,979) (1,313) 

21,990 Less discounting at5.8%and 6%for1998 and 1997 (5,369) (7,108) Unpaid claims reserve 12.131 14,882 (4) Deposits and Investments LMRFA must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these agencies shall be limited to institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits in financial institutions may exceed the federally insured amount in any one financial institution, as long as the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution. In regard to deposits and investments, the Fund is in compliance with these revised provisions during the years ended December 31. 1998 and 1997. The demand deposits are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year end. "Insured" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurance. "Uninsured" deposits are those balances in excess of federal depository insurance. 
Insured Uninsured 
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100,326 
100,326 
1997 100,344 
100.344 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Category I investments include securities which are insured or registered or securities held by LMRFA or its agent in LMRFA's name. The U.S. Government agency obligation investments are direct obligations registered in the name of the Fund and held by the Fund's investment agent, The money market accounts are collateralized by obligations of the U.S. Government registered in the name of and held by the Fund's agent. The fair value for investments by type at December 31, 1998 and 1997, are as follows 

December 31, 1997: Money market accounts U.S. Government Agency Obligations U.S. Treasury Obligations 

1998 Fair value 
$ 2,900,342 16,879,272 9.914.263 $ 29,693,877 

1997 
Fair value 
2,402,786 18,388,856 7.090.412 27,882,054 

Category 

The scheduled maturities ofsecurities held were as follows at December 31: 1998 1997 Due in one year Due after one year through five years Due after five years through ten years Due after ten years 
$ 7,689,358 11,298,362 5,210,062 5,496,095 $ 29,693,877 

6,249,720 8,601,340 7,028,920 6,002,074 
Included in investment balances as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 are derivative investments. These investments included U.S. Treasury strips, collateralized mortgage obligations, and floating rate securities with a market value of $3,357,501 and $5,221,639 as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. These derivative investments are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience future market value fluctuations. 

(Continued) 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(5) Reinsurance Policy Coverage For the year ended December 31, 1994, LMRFA provided reinsurance to LMRMA Accident and Health, Public Liability and Workers' Compensation Funds with the following aggregate coverage: Workers' Comoensation Fund Item 1: Item I1 $2,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 80% of earned normal premimn $2,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $175,000 each and every loss Public Liability Fund Item I: Item I1 $5,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 65% of earned normal premium $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss Accident and Health Fund Item I Annual aggregate in excess of 125% of annual aggregate retention (85% of Earned Normal Premium), listed at a minimum of earned normal premium Item II: $950,000 each and every loss in excess of $50,000 each and every loss Effective January 1, 1995, LMRFA obtained commercial reinsurance for claims as follows Workers' Comoensation Fund Item I: Item II $1,000,000 annual aggregate $1,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $50,000 each and every loss up to $750,000 No changes were made in the Public Liability Fund coverage The LMRMA Accident and Health Fund obtained commercial reinsurance effective January 1, 1995 and is not covered by LMRFA. LMRMA and LMRFA represent a cooperative program for group funding and risk management of public liability claims of participating Louisiana municipalities. Although premiums billed to the participants are determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claims remains with the participants. As of December 31, 1998, LMRFA also provides reinsurance for 3 municipalities for workers' compensation claims up to an annual aggregate amount ranging from 80% to 90% of their standard premium. 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Year 2000 Disclosures (Unaudited) The following is a synopsis of Louisiana Muuicipal Reserve Fund Agency's (LMRFA) actions to ensure that our agency is year 2000 compliant. The Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is the administrator of the fund. Risk Management, Inc. (RMI) is the third party administrator of the fund. These parties mus! be year 2000 compliant for the fund to be compliant. The LMRMA Funds, LMA, and RMI are all affiliated through common membership and management control. Awareness Stage The Deputy Director of LMA began assessing the computer systems in 1998. The director of RM1 began assessing their computer system in 1996. Assessment Stage The Deputy Director of LMA assessed the computer systems and determined which systems needed upgrading to be year 2000 compliant. $13,400 was budgeted in 1999 for computer equipment, and $4,000 was budgeted in 1999 for computer software replacement. The director of RMI hired a computer consultant to assure their computer hardware and software would be year 2000 compliant. Remediallon Stage All LMA computer hardware and software needed to become year 2000 compliant was purchased and installed in the first quarter of 1999. Written notification from accounting software provider was obtained assuring compliance. RMI software and hardware were updated in 1998. Validation/Testing Stage LMA has assurances from its vendors that its equipment and software are year 2000 compliant. RMI tested their system in February 1999 and performed a final test of the system in March 1999. All of their systems are now year 2000 compliant. Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that LMRMA is or will be year 2000 ready, that the Agency's remediation effort will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the Agency does business will be year 2000 ready. 



 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL RESERVE FUND AGENCY Schedule December 3 l, 1998 The lable below illuslrates the Fund's earned normal premium and investment income compared to related costs and claims expense incurred by tile Fund as of tile end of 1998 and as of the end of each of the last nine years, 
ENf' and inveslnlenl income Operaling costs, unallocated 

998 1997 1996 
Estimaled incurred claims and expense, end of ixdicy year 2,302 Paid (cumulativc) as of End of policy year One year later RClwo years later lhree years later Four yeats later Fwe years late~ Six years laler Seven years laler Eight year~ tater Nine years later Re-estimated incurred claims and claims 

5.004 483 4,142 415 
995 1994 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 (in "~housands) 4,327 427 

3,901 3,887 3,793 140 140 - - 

3,901 2,016 3,887 2,083 1,367 

283 ,289 

3,793 2.293 3.818 3,367 

4.443 20 
4,144 195 487 490 542 1.155 

4,144 4,230 2,304 2,010 2.219 

4,897 17 4,079 3.792 3.263 2,603 2 2 7 3 
3,130 4,'/54 3,73g' 3.912 3,13 627 627 1,175 1,265 I A46 2,104 
3,130 3,792 3,146 2.973 3,178 3.388 

207 988 1,710 2.675 3.700 2,701 2,844 
4,754 4,174 5,501 5,382 4,501 4.309 4.144 

82 388 1,249 1,562 1,732 2,284 2,474 2,646 
3,739 2,862 3,526 3.828 4,05 I 4,488 4.298 4.076 

222 279 279 321 ,008 ,147 ,422 .721 785 
3.912 3.608 3.297 3,686 3,122 3,746 3.501 3,618 3,268 

516 686 1,152 1,287 1,706 1,874 2.030 
3,131 1,846 3.344 3.297 2.790 2,583 3.319 3,586 3,565 3,381 ncrease (decrease) in eslimated incurred daims and expense horn end of policy year (I,885) (2.fi20) 417 (I,925) 258 (610) 340 (644) 25(1 ( I ) Efleelive January I, 1996, the Fund accourttext for inve,~tment~ o0. a fair value basis. 

St:e accompaoyJng independenl at~dJlors' report 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 
Report on Compliance and on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency 
We have audited the financial statements of Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (the Fund) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated June 11, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. Internal Control Over Financial Reoorting In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. This report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
June 11, 1999 
llll 
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Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Independent Auditors' Report 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Association Unemployment Compensation Fund 
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements arc the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 11, 1999, on our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The year 2000 supplementary information on page 9 is not a required part of the financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to apply to the information cerlain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the nature of the subject matter underlying the disclosure requirements and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the matters to be disclosed have not been established. In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Fund is or will become year 2000 compliant, that the Fund's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with which the Fund does business are or will become year 2000 compliant, 
June 11, 1999 
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Cash in banks (note 4) Accounts receivable 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND 

Accrued interest receivable Investments (note 4) 
Assets 

Balance Sheets December 31. 1998 and 1997 

Liabilities and Retained Earnings Liabilities: Accrued expenses Unpaid claims reserve (note 3) Policyholder dividend payable (note 2) 
Retained earnings 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 75,147 20,390 43,209 6.312,794 6.451,540 
59,154 63,420 100.000 222,574 6,228,966 6,451,540 

33,840 39,004 36,741 5.837,326 5,946,91 
6,714 43,764 
50,478 5,896,433 5,946,91 



 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Retained Earnings 

Revenues: Premium income Investment income 
Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 

Total revenue Expenses: Claims expense (note 3) Service agent Policyholder dividend (note 2) Miscellaneous Total expenses Net income Retained earnings, beginning of year Retained earnings, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

$ 
1998 1997 
81,561 588,586 670,147 
214,062 22,297 100,000 1.255 337.614 

156,013 696.415 852.428 
50,059 21,055 5.130 176,244 332,533 676,184 5,896,433 5,220,249 6.228.966 5,896,433 



 

LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND Statements of Cash Flows Years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 
Cash flows from operating activ|tles: Net income Less adjustment for investment income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operations: Decrease in receivables Increase in unpaid claims reserve Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and policyholder dividend payable Total adjustments Net cash used in operating activities Cash flows from investing activities Purchases of investments Sale or maturity of investments Interest income received Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash Cash, beginning of year Cash, end of year 
See accompanying notes to financial statements 

1998 1997 
332,533 (588,586) (256,053) 
18,614 19.656 

676,184 (696.415) (20.231) 
17,344 3,397 

90,710 15,122 (65,343) (5,109) (4,770,685) 4,441,650 435.685 106.650 41,307 33.840 75.147 

(881,257) 630,157 246.167 (4,933) (10,042) 43.882 33,840 



 
LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND 

(1) Significant Accounting Policies 
Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (the Fund) was formed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 23:1552. The Fund consists of Louisiana municipalities joined together in self-insurance agreements with respect to unemployment compensation fund insurance. Administration of the Fund is vested in the Executive Board of Louisiana Municipal Association. Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LMA acts as the administrator for the Fund. As of December 31, 1998, there were 5,722 participants and 135 participating municipalities. As of December 31, 1997, there were 5,172 participants and 127 participating municipalities. The Fund and LMA are affiliated through common membership and management control. Although both of these entities are related parties, their equity is available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 and GASB 14. (b) Basis of Accounting The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of accounting and the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict or contradict GASB pronouncements. (c) Cash and Cash Flows For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money markets and repurchase agreements arc usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more or are reinvested continuously, they arc classified as investments. Deposits are carried at cost and are separately displayed on the balance sheets as cash in banks. (d) Investments Investments arc reported at fair value except for short-term and money market investments, consisting primarily of U.S. treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized gains and losses on investments recorded at fair value are included in investment income. Investments are carried at quoted market prices, as determined by the Fund's investment managers and trustee. Included in investments are certificates of deposit with original maturities of greater than 90 days, deposits in money market accounts, certificates of deposit, investments in U.S. Government Agency Obligations and Treasury and short-term repurchase agreements. 
5 (Continued) 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 1998 and 1997 
(e) Unpaid CLaims Liability Claims expense consists of estimated amounts for claims incurred during the curreJ~t ),ear and ad)uslments to the accounting estimate of prior years' claims expense. Because the adjustment to prior years' !oss amounts represents changes in accounting estimates, these changes are reflected m earnings m the period they become known. The Fund establishes claim liabilities based on estimates of the uhimate cost of claims that have been reported, but not yet settled. 09 Income Taxes The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of tile Internal Revenue Code. (g) Use of Estimates Management of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with genera/ly accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Related Party Transactions In 1998, the LMA board approved a rebate of $|00,000 of 1997 interest earnings to be paid to members of the Fund ill 1999. This rebate would be prorated based on premium payments for the year 1997 and paid to those municipalities that were members of the Fund as of December 3 l, 1997. Claims Expense and Unpaid Claims Reserve The following represents changes in the aggregate liabilities for the Fund for the years ended December31, 1998 and 1997: 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at beginning of year Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses - provision for insured events of the current year 

6 

1998 1997 (in thousands) 
44 40 
214 150 

(Col~tinued) 



 
LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 

Payments: Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of current year $ Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to insured events of prior years Total payments Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at end of year $ 

1998 1997 (in tbousands) 
(151) (106) 
(44) (40) 
63 44 

Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years (4) Cash and Investments Cash in banks is carried at cost. Certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase agreements are included in investments as their average maturity is greater than 90 days and the amounts are reinvested continuously. The demand deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed at year end. "Insured" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurance or pledged collateral. "Uninsured" deposits are those balances in excess of federal depository insurance. Bank account balances and certificates of deposit as listed below are either insured or secured by collateral as follows: 
Insured Uninsured 

1998 1997 $ 75,147 
75.147 

33.840 
33.840 Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest any surplus monies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, as well as financial institutions. Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase agreements. The Fund's investments are categorized as follows to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the Fund at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or agent in the Fund's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND Notes to Financial Statements December 31. 1998 and 1997 

unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, but not in the Fund's name. The fair value for investments by security type at December 31, 1998 and 1997 are as follows 1998 1997 Fair value 
Money market accounts $ 499,668 U.S. Government Agency obligations U.S. Treasury securities 3,746,216 2,066,910 $ 6.312,794 

Fair value 
528,449 2,635,024 2,673,853 5,837.326 

The scheduled maturities of securities held were as follows at December 31 1998 Due in one year Due after one year through five years Due after five years through ten years Due after ten years 
1,151,717 3,058,635 1,059,455 1.042.987 

Category 
1 1 

902,799 1,350,356 1,570,273 2.013.898 $ 6,312,794 5,837,326 Included in investment balances as of December 31, 1998 and 1997 are derivative investments. These investments included U.S. Treasury strips and collateralized mortgage obligations with market values of $878,034 and $2,894,145 as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. These derivative investments are interest rate sensitive, and as a result, could experience significant future market value fluctuations. 
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LOUISIANA MUNICIPAL ASSOCIATION UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION FUND Year 2000 Disclosures (Unaudited) 
The following is a synopsis of Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund's (the Fund) actions to ensure that our agency is year 2000 compliant. The Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is lhe administrator of the fund. The Fund and LMA are affiliated through common membership and management control. Therefore, LMA must be year 2000 compliant for the Fund to be compliant. Awareness Stage The Deputy Director of LMA began assessing the computer systems in 1998 Assessment Stage The Deputy Director of LMA assessed the computer systems and determined which systems needed upgrading to be year 2000 compliant. $13,400 was budgeted in 1999 for computer equipment, and $4,000 was budgeted in 1999 for computer software replacerrlent. Remediation Stage All LMA computer hardware and software needed to become year 2000 compliant was purchased and installed ill the first quarter of 1999. Written notification from accounting software provider was obtained assuring compliance. Validation/Testing Stage LMA has assurances from its vendors that its equipment and software are year 2000 compliant Because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of remediation efforts will not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management cannot assure that LMRMA is or will be year 2000 ready, that the Agency's remediation effort will be successful in whole or in part, or that parties with whom the Agency does business will be year 2000 ready. 



Suite 3500 One Shell Square New Orleans, LA 70139-3599 

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
Officers and Trustees Louisiana Municipal Association Unemployment Compensation Fund 
We have audited the financial statements of Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (the Fund) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1998, and have issued our report thereon dated June 11, 1999. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Compliance As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not all objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. nlcrnal Control Over Financial Reoortine 111 planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

llll 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Commissioner of Insurance. State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not bc used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
June 11, 1999 


